
GwE Gogledd Cymru

Meeting

GWE JOINT COMMITTEE

Date and Time

2.00 pm, WEDNESDAY, 26TH SEPTEMBER, 2018

Location

GwE Offices, Bryn Eirias, Abergele Road, Colwyn Bay, LL29 8BF

Contact Point

Annes Sion
01286 679729490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Complete Agenda



GWE JOINT COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

Voting Members

Councillors

Councillor Meirion Jones Isle of Angelsey County Council
Councillor Garffild Lewis Conwy County Borough Council
Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts Denbighshire County Council
Councillor Ian Roberts Flintshire County Council
Councillor Phil Wynn Wrexham County Borough Council
Gareth Thomas Gwynedd Council

Co-opted Non-voting Members

Haf Williams Primary Schools Representative
Peter Agnew Secondary Schools Representative
Mair Herbet Secondary Schools Representative
Jonathan Morgan Special Schools Representative
Alison Fisher Governor Representative

Non-voting Officers

Arwyn Williams Isle of Angelsey County Council
Dr Lowri Brown Conwy County Borough Council
Karen Evans Denbighshire County Council
Claire Homard Denbighshire County Council
Ian Roberts Wrexham County Council
Garem Jackson Gwynedd Council

Officers in Attendance

Arwyn Thomas GwE Managing Director
Iwan G. Evans Host Authority
Dafydd L. Edwards Host Authority
Steve Vincent Welsh Government
Susan Owen Jones GwE Business Manager
Dr Gwynne Jones Isle of Anglesey County Council
Rhys Howard Hughes GwE Assistant Director
Alwyn Jones GwE Assistant Director
Gareth Williams GwE Advisory Board Chairman



A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

To receive any declaration of personal interest.

3.  URGENT ITEMS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman 
for consideration. 

4.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 4 - 7

5.  THE JOINT COMMITTEE'S FINAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 AND RELEVANT AUDIT

8 - 71

Presented by Dafydd L Edwards 

6.  GWE BUDGET 2017/18 - QUARTER 1 REVIEW 72 - 76

Presented by Dafydd L Edwards

7.  2018-19 RISK REGISTER - QUARTER 1 REVIEW 77 - 83

Presented by Arwyn Thomas 

8.  2018-19 BUSINESS PLAN - QUARTER 1 MONITORING 84 - 105

Presented by Arwyn Thomas 

9.  INITIAL REPORT ON THE REGION'S PERFORMANCE 106 - 123

Presented by Arwyn Thomas 

10.  SHIRLEY CLARKE PROJECT

Presentation by Stella Gruffydd



GwE Joint Committee 21/02/2017

1

GwE Joint Committee

04.07.2018

Present:

Councillors: Gareth Thomas - Chair (Gwynedd Council), Phil Wynn - Vice-chair (Wrexham 
County Borough Council), Garffild Lewis (Conwy County Borough Council), Ian Roberts 
(Flintshire County Council) and Meirion Jones (Anglesey County Council). 

Co-opted non-voting Members: Haf Williams (Primary Schools Representative), Peter 
Agnew (Secondary Schools Representative)  and Alison Fisher (Governors' Representative). 

Non-voting Officers: Karen Evans (Denbighshire County Council), Ian Roberts (Wrexham 
County Borough Council)  

Officers present: Arwyn Thomas (GwE Managing Director), Iwan G. Evans (Host Authority 
Head of Legal Service - Gwynedd Council), Dafydd Edwards (Host Authority Head of Finance 
- Gwynedd Council), Bethan Eleri Roberts (GwE Performance Management Manager), Euros 
Davies (GwE) and Annes Sion (Host Authority Members' Support Officer - Gwynedd Council). 

1. APOLOGIES

Councillors Huw Hilditch-Roberts (Denbighshire County Council), Rosalind Williams (Church 
in Wales), Jonathan Morgan (Special Schools representative), Arwyn Williams (Anglesey 
Council), Dr Lowri Brown (Conwy County Borough Council), Claire Homard (Flintshire County 
Council), Garem Jackson (Gwynedd Council), Dr Gwynne Jones (Anglesey Council), Rhys 
Howard Hughes (GwE Assistant Director)    

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST  

No declaration of personal interest was received by any member present. 

3. URGENT MATTERS

There were no urgent matters.  

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Chair signed the minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2018 as correct.  

5. GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

DECISION 

Commend the Annual Governance Statement. 

DISCUSSION 

The report was presented, noting that The Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2018 place specific requirements on public bodies who are implementing 
partnership management arrangements via official joint committees. It was noted that the Joint 
Committee is required to accept and commend the Statement. It was stated that the 
Governance Statement is based on the one published last year and that there are not many 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



GwE Joint Committee 21/02/2017

2

changes. Specifically, Principles were scrutinised, noting the main principles, which include 
being open, skills and creativity and effective relationships.  

Details were given on when the Joint Committee met, as well as the User Group, which is an 
opportunity for schools to give feedback.  It was noted that a report was generated following 
the Estyn visit, noting the progress made since the inspection in 2016. It was added that the 
report was presented to the joint committee in the November 2017 meeting.  It was explained 
there are not many changes to the Statement commended last year, but that it needs to be 
adopted.   

6. LEARNING INSPECTORATE: INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF ESTYN - PROFESSOR 
GRAHAM DONALDSON 

The report was presented, noting there had been a discussion on accountability in the previous 
meeting, and it was added that this report is aligned to the accountability framework.  

The phases noted in the report were outlined, noting that the first phase redirects Estyn to 
support schools and that there will be no inspections during 2019/20.  It was explained that 
statutory category schools will still have a second visit.  There will be new self-evaluation 
arrangements, and a framework will be created to assist schools.  It was noted that the 
framework will be piloted during September. It was noted that the second phase will be to start 
inspections again from 2020 onwards.  The self-evaluation will be considered in more detail.  
It was explained that the third phase will be inspections operating on the basis of self-
evaluation.  

The need for clarity was noted regarding phase 2 and the role of the consortia.  

Comments arising from the discussion.
 The need for clarity in terms of everyone's role was noted.  
 What is the timetable? - it was noted that changes are due to start during 2019/20.  
 The need for a clear communication plan was noted, once there will be further 

clarification on the report.  

DECISION Accept the report.  

7. GwE PROFESSIONAL OFFER 

The report was presented, noting that this is the second offer since November. It was added 
that the offer now includes 54 logic models focusing specifically on impact.  

An example of the Logic Model was shown.  It was noted that both GwE and national priorities 
are incorporated into the Logic Models. The Professional Offer was sent to schools in June.  

It was stated that training is now available, and that schools can book a place for training 
online.  To date, it was noted that feedback from schools is good, and that it had been released 
in time to feed into the SDP. 

Comments arising from the discussion.

Page 5



GwE Joint Committee 21/02/2017

3

 It was asked whether it's difficult for teachers to attend training as a result of reduced 
budgets to release staff.  It was noted that it can be difficult for teachers to attend 
training. However, schools working in clusters can support this. 

 Financial cuts were discussed, and the need to discuss how schools are to make 
developments and transform their ways of working.   

 It was added that releasing teachers from schools to attend professional training is a 
practical problem.  
The Joint Committee thanked Euros Davies for his work.  

DECISION Accept the report.  

8. SCHOOLS AS LEARNING ORGANISATIONS 

A report was presented, noting there had been an announcement about what makes a school 
a learning organisation.  It was stated that Welsh Government has noted a vision for Schools 
as Learning Organisations (SLOs).  

A template of the vision for SLOs was shown.  It was noted that a group of schools will produce 
an animation of what are SLOs, noting that all schools are expected to be a SLO from October 
2019.  It was added that GwE will continue to work with specific schools, and that they will be 
able to share information within their area. The survey will be sent to schools before November 
2018.  

Comments arising from the discussion.

 It was discussed what GwE is doing with Universities so as to ensure the teachers of 
the future are equipped with the necessary skills for SLOs.  It was noted there is a 
close partnership with Bangor University and Chester University, which is working on 
developing the teachers of the future. 

DECISION Accept the report.  

9. RISK REGISTER

A report was presented, noting that it is a live document which is reviewed frequently. It was 
noted that 11 of the risks have been updated, and that risks 2, 5 and 14 are new risks as a 
result of combining various other risks.  

It was noted there is an additional risk, namely, to acquire timely information from Welsh 
Government.  

Comments arising from the discussion. 

 The need to revisit the steps was noted.  

DECISION Commend the report.  

10. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS - FINANCIAL REPORT 

The report was presented, noting that these are March accounts and that the annexes are 
certified statements.  It was noted that the statements will be returned in September, following 
further audit.  The document was explained, and some figures emphasised. 

Page 6



GwE Joint Committee 21/02/2017

4

The main problem noted was acquiring funding late in the financial year. Consequently, it is 
difficult to plan for the future and decide how to spend the money. 

 It was added that this is not expected to change any time soon, and that the situation is not 
unique to education.  It was noted that it will be possible to use the budget in a different way 
in the current financial climate, but there is a need for more stability.  

DECISION Accept the report. 

Page 7



MEETING GwE Joint Committee

DATE 26 September 2018

TITLE The Joint Committee’s Final Accounts for the year ended 
31 March 2018 and relevant Audit

PURPOSE To submit –
 The Statement of Accounts post-Audit;
 The Wales Audit Office’s report;
 Letter of Representation.

RECOMMENDATION To receive, note and approve the information before 
authorising the Chairman to certify the letter.

AUTHOR Dafydd L Edwards, Head of Finance, Gwynedd Council

1. FINANCIAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Members will recall that it was reported as follows to the 4 July 2018 meeting of 
GwE’s Joint Committee:

1.1 There are specific accounting and audit reporting requirements for Joint 
Committees.

1.2 Section 12 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 states that a joint committee 
of two or more (local) authorities is a local government body, and Section 
13 of the Act requires such bodies to maintain accounts subject to audit by 
an external auditor approved by the Auditor General for Wales.

1.3 Although they are not independent legal entities, for the purposes of keeping 
accounts and being audited, a joint committee is separately subject to the 
same regulations as other local councils.

1.4 Gwynedd Council is the host Council responsible for meeting the accounting 
and financial reporting responsibilities of GwE’s Joint Committee.

1.5 The Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendments) Regulations 2018 require 
all Joint Committees to prepare year-end accounts. Where the turnover 
exceeds £2.5million, a statement of accounts must be prepared in 
accordance with the CIPFA code for the Joint Committee.

1.6 GwE’s Statement of Accounts were subject to an audit by Deloitte, external 
auditors appointed by the Auditor General for Wales.

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



2. ACCOUNTS FOR 2017/18

The Revenue Income and Expenditure Account for 2017/18 was submitted to the 
23 May 2018 meeting of GwE’s Joint Committee in “outturn” format, and the 
Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 (subject to audit) in standard statutory format 
to the 4 July 2018 meeting.

3. AUDIT

It was noted at the time that these accounts would be subject to audit by Deloitte, 
and the ‘ISA 260’ report is presented here by the Auditor General for Wales 
detailing Deloitte’s main findings. Paragraph 8 of the report states that “It is the 
Auditor General’s intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the financial 
statement”.

4. FINAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2017/18

The final version (post audit) of the Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 is also 
presented herewith.  The amendments since the subject to audit version have been 
outlined in Appendix 3 to the Auditor General for Wales’ ‘ISA260’ report.

5. RECOMMENDATION

GwE’s Joint Committee is asked to receive, note and approve the information 
in the appendices, i.e. –

 ‘ISA260’ report by the Auditor General for Wales 
 The Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 (post audit)

6. LETTER OF REPRESENTATION  

The Chairman of the meeting, together with Gwynedd Council’s Head of 
Finance (as Statutory Finance Officer for GwE), are asked to certify the Letter 
of Representation (Appendix 1 to the Auditor General for Wales’ report) after the 
Joint Committee has considered the above.  

7. AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES CERTIFICATE

After receiving the Letter of Representation duly certified by the Chairman and the 
Head of Finance, the Auditor General for Wales will issue the certificate on the 
accounts.

OPINION OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS

Monitoring Officer :     
No comments from a propriety perspective.

Statutory Finance Officer :
Author of the report.

Page 9



 

Audit of Financial Statements Report – 
GwE Joint Committee 

Audit year: 2017-18 

Date issued: September 2018 

 

Page 10



 

 

This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention  

is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public 

authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor 

General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding 

disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at 

infoofficer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 

not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

The team who delivered the work comprised Ian Howse (Engagement Partner), Lauren Parsons 

(Engagement Manager) and Alex Watts (Team Leader)

Page 11

mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

The Auditor General intends to issue an unqualified audit report on your financial 

statements.  

 

Summary report  

Introduction 4 

Status of the audit 4 

Proposed audit report 4 

Audit outcomes 5 

Recommendations arising from our 2017-18 financial audit work 7 

Independence and objectivity 7 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Draft Letter of Representation 8 

Appendix 2 – Proposed audit report of the Auditor General to the Audit Committee 11 

Appendix 3 – Recommendations arising from our 2017-18 financial audit work 14 

Appendix 4 – Recommendations arising from our 2016-17 financial audit work 15 

Page 12



Summary report 

Page 4 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

Introduction 

1 The Auditor General is responsible for providing an opinion on whether the 

financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of GwE Joint 

Committee at 31 March 2018 and its income and expenditure for the year then 

ended. 

2 We do not try to obtain absolute assurance that the financial statements are 

correctly stated, but adopt the concept of materiality. In planning and conducting 

the audit, we seek to identify material misstatements in your financial statements, 

namely, those that might result in a reader of the accounts being misled. 

3 The quantitative levels at which we judge such misstatements to be material for 

GwE Joint Committee are £364,000. Whether an item is judged to be material can 

also be affected by certain qualitative issues such as legal and regulatory 

requirements and political sensitivity. 

4 International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 requires us to report certain matters 

arising from the audit of the financial statements to those charged with governance 

of a body in sufficient time to enable appropriate action. 

5 This report sets out for consideration the matters arising from the audit of the 

financial statements of GwE Joint Committee, for 2017-18, that require reporting 

under ISA 260. 

Status of the audit 

6 We received the draft financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 on  

18 June 2018, and have now substantially completed the audit work, however, at 

the date of our circulation of this report the following were outstanding: 

 Clearance of review notes; 

 Finalisation of related parties testing; 

 Review of second version of the accounts; 

 Clearance from independent quality reviewer; 

 Receipt of letter of representation 

7 We are reporting to you the more significant issues arising from the audit, which we 

believe you must consider prior to approval of the financial statements. The audit 

team has already discussed these issues with management. 

Proposed audit report 

8 It is the Auditor General’s intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the 

financial statements once you have provided us with a Letter of Representation 

based on that set out in Appendix 1.  

9 The proposed audit report is set out in Appendix 2. 

Page 13



 

Page 5 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

 

Audit outcomes 

Uncorrected misstatements  

10 There are no uncorrected misstatements.  

Corrected misstatements 

11 There are no corrected misstatements which we consider should be drawn to your 

attention. 

Significant Risks 

12 In our Financial Audit Plan, we set out information regarding the significant audit 

risks that were identified during our planning process. The table below sets out the 

outcome of our audit procedures in respect of those risks. We have conducted our 

audit in line with the Financial Audit Plan.  

 

 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 

Grant income and expenditure 

The committee receives significant grant 

funding, most of which is distributed to local 

authorities and schools. There is a risk that 

the financial statements inappropriately 

include or exclude this grant funding as the 

Committee will need to make an assessment 

of whether it is acting as an agent or principal 

body. 

My audit team understood the Committee’s 

recognition policy for grant income and 

expenditure which included a review of 

whether the Committee is acting as principal or 

agent. We performed tests of detail to confirm 

whether recognition criteria have been met. 

No issues were identified. 

Management override of controls 

The risk of management override of controls 

is present in all entities. Due to the 

unpredictable way in which such override 

could occur, it is viewed as a significant risk 

[ISA 240.31-33]. 

My audit team: 

 tested the appropriateness of journal entries 

and other adjustments made in preparing 

the financial statements using enhanced 

data analytics to analyse the whole journal 

population for characteristics of interest; 

 performed design and implementation 

testing of controls over journal entries to the 

financial ledger; 

 reviewed accounting estimates for biases; 

and 

 evaluated the rationale for any significant 

transactions outside the normal course of 

Page 14



 

Page 6 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

Financial audit risk Proposed audit response 

business including those with related 

parties. 

No issues were identified. 

Other significant issues arising from the audit 

13 In the course of the audit, we consider a number of matters both qualitative and 

quantitative relating to the accounts and report any significant issues arising to you. 

There were no issues arising in these areas this year: 

 We have no concerns about the qualitative aspects of your accounting 

practices and financial reporting. We found the information provided to be 

relevant, reliable, comparable, material and easy to understand. We 

concluded that accounting policies and estimates are appropriate and 

financial statement disclosures unbiased, fair and clear. 

  We did not encounter any significant difficulties during the audit. 

 There were no significant matters discussed and corresponded upon 

with management which we need to report to you.  

 There are no other matters significant to the oversight of the financial 

reporting process that we need to report to you.  

 We did not identify any material weaknesses in your internal controls. 

 There are not any other matters specifically required by auditing 

standards to be communicated to those charged with governance.  

  

Page 15



 

Page 7 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

Recommendations arising from our 2017-18 
financial audit work 

14 The recommendations arising from our financial audit work are set out in Appendix 

3. Management has responded to them and we will follow up progress on them 

during next year’s audit. Where any actions are outstanding, we will continue to 

monitor progress and report it to you in next year’s report. 

Independence and objectivity 

15 As part of the finalisation process, we are required to provide you with 

representations concerning our independence. 

16 We have complied with ethical standards and in our professional judgment, we are 

independent and our objectivity is not compromised. There are no relationships 

between the Wales Audit Office and GwE Joint Committee that we consider to bear 

on our objectivity and independence. 

 

Page 16



Appendix 1 

Page 8 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

Draft Letter of Representation 

Auditor General for Wales 

Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff 

CF11 9LJ 

26 September 2018 

 

Representations regarding the 2017-18 financial 
statements 
This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of GwE 

Joint Committee for the year ended 31 March 2018 the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on their truth and fairness and their proper preparation. 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 

consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 

 

Management representations 

 

Responsibilities 

 We have fulfilled our responsibilities for:  

 The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative 

requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting; in 

particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 

therewith. 

 The design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to prevent 

and detect fraud and error. 

Information provided 

We have provided you with: 

 Full access to: 

o all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 

the financial statements such as books of account and supporting 

documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters; 

o additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 

the audit; and 

o unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to 

obtain audit evidence. 

Page 17



 

Page 9 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

 The results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 

materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 Our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects 

GwE Joint Committee and involves: 

o management; 

o employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

o others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

o Our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting 

the financial statements communicated by employees, former 

employees, regulators or others. 

 Our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected  

non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered  

when preparing the financial statements. 

 The identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and 

transactions of which we are aware. 

 

Financial statement representations 
All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and 

are reflected in the financial statements. 

Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 

at fair value, are reasonable. 

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed. 

All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or 

disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed. 

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 

when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and 

accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 

framework. 

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The 

effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both 

individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

Representations by those charged with governance 
We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 

discussed with us. 

Page 18



 

Page 10 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial 

statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial 

statements were approved by GwE Joint Committee on 26 September 2018. 

We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 

ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 

communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit 

information of which you are unaware. 

 

 

Signed by: Signed by: 

Dafydd L Edwards 

Head of Finance 

Gwynedd Council 

Councillor Gareth Thomas 

Chairman 

GwE Joint Committee 

Date: Date: 

 

Page 19



Appendix 2 

Page 11 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

Proposed audit report of the Auditor General to 
the GwE Joint Committee 

 

The independent auditor’s report of the Auditor General for Wales to the members 

of GwE Joint Committee 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

I have audited the financial statements of GwE Joint Committee for the year ended 31 

March 2018 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  

GwE Joint Committee’s financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves 

Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, 

the Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies.  

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 

law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-

18 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 

In my opinion the financial statements:  

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of GwE Joint Committee as at 31 

March 2018 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and the 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-18. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on 

Auditing in the UK (ISAs (UK)). My responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section 

of my report. I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial 

Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities 

in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs 

(UK) require me to report to you where: 

 the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is not appropriate; or 

 the responsible financial officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any 

identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about joint 

committee’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a 

period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are 

authorised for issue. 

Page 20



 

Page 12 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

 

Other information 

The responsible financial officer is responsible for the other information in the annual 

report and accounts. The other information comprises the information included in the 

annual report other than the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. My 

opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to 

the extent otherwise explicitly stated later in my report, I do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the 

other information to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements 

and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 

materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing 

the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies I 

consider the implications for my report. 

Report on other requirements 

Opinion on other matters 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of my audit: 

 the information contained in the Narrative Report for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the 

Narrative Report has been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017-18;  

 The information given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for 

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 

statements and the Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in accordance 

with guidance.  

Matters on which I report by exception 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the council and its environment 

obtained in the course of the audit, I have not identified material misstatements in the 

Narrative Report or the Annual Governance Statement: 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 

opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 

returns; or 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit. 

Certificate of completion of audit 

I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of GwE Joint Committee in 

accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor 

General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 

Responsibilities 

Responsibilities of the responsible financial officer for the financial statements 

Page 21



 

Page 13 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 

Accounts set out on page 6, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the 

preparation of the statement of accounts, which give a true and fair view, and for such 

internal control as the responsible financial officer determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of statements of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the statement of accounts, the responsible financial officer is responsible for 

assessing the council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

deemed inappropriate.  

 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 

of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 

(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s report. 

       

Anthony Barrett      24 Cathedral Road 

For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales  Cardiff 

28 September 2018      CF11 9LJ 

 

 

Page 22



Appendix 3 

Page 14 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

Recommendations arising from our 2017-18 
financial audit work 

We set out all the recommendations arising from our audit with management’s response 

to them. We will follow up these next year and include any outstanding issues in next 

year’s audit report: 

 

Matter arising 1 – IT findings 

Findings As part of our financial audit we engaged IT specialists to 
assist the audit team with testing the appropriateness of 
the Council’s IT systems which have a direct impact on 
the production of the financial statements. The IT 
specialists identified a number of recommendations 
which have been communicated to management. 

Recommendation It is recommended that management work with the IT 
Manager to ensure these recommendations are 
implemented in a timely manner. 

Priority Low 

Benefit of Implementing 

Recommendation 

To improve the quality and robustness of the IT 

systems. 

Accepted in full by 

management 

Yes 

Management response Agreed and some aspects already actioned. 

Implementation date During 2018/19. 

Page 23



Appendix 4 

Page 15 of 16 - Audit of Financial Statements Report – GwE Joint Committee 

Recommendations arising from our 2016-17 
financial audit work 

We set out all the recommendations arising from our 2016-17 audit with management’s 

response to them. We have followed these up during the 2017-18 audit and have 

recorded the results below. 

 

Matter arising 1 – Timeliness of Raising Invoices 

Findings A payment of £75k relating to 2015/16 is recorded as 

being due from Gwynedd Council to GwE however, we 

identified that as at 19 July 2017 no invoice had been 

raised by GWE.  As this is debt is now over a year old, 

we have raised a finding to ensure the timeliness of 

raising sales invoices in the future.   

Priority Low 

Recommendation It is recommended that management ensure invoices 

are raised in a timely manner as there is a risk that 

appropriate accounting entries may not be made within 

the correct financial year. Given that Gwynedd and 

GWE share the same bank account, it minimises the risk 

of debt not being collected, however, if this matter 

spanned more widely there is a risk that debt may not be 

collected in a timely manner which may give rise to cash 

flow issues.  

Accepted in full by 

management 

Yes 

Management response We will comply with the above recommendation in the 

future 

Implementation date Immediate 

2017-18 findings No issues have been identified during the course of the 

audit in relation to the timeliness of raising invoices. 

Status Recommendation implemented 

Management response N/a – recommendation implemented 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

 

Wales Audit Office 

24 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 

Fax: 029 2032 0600 

Textphone.: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 

Website: www.audit.wales 

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 

24 Heol y Gadeirlan 

Caerdydd CF11 9LJ 

Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 

Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru 

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru 

 

Page 25

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

1

MEETING GwE Joint Committee

DATE 26 September 2018

TITLE GwE Budget 2018/19 – 1st Quarter Review

PURPOSE  To update Joint Committee members on the latest financial 
review of GwE’s budget for the 2018/19 financial year.

 The report focuses on the significant financial variances, with 
Appendix 1 containing the full financial information. 

RECOMMENDATION To accept the report.

AUTHOR GwE Managing Director and Gwynedd Council Head of Finance.

1. CONCLUSION

1.1 This initial review estimates a net underspend of (£6,585) against the budget, 
with the main reason being staff turnover. 

1.2 We intend to submit an implementation plan to the Joint Committee, to resolve 
the financial deficit identified in section 2.3 and 2.4.

1.3 The subsequent part of the report explains the reasons accounting for the main 
variances.

Page 72

Agenda Item 6



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

2

2. FINANCIAL VARIANCES 

2.1 Employees - Management, Brokerage, Standards and Administration: 
Quarter 1: underspend (£77,700).
Staff turnover, mainly a secondment of an Assistant Director from the 1st of June 
has led to a temporary underspend and financing, in the short term, savings to 
be found (see 2.4).

2.2 Transport - Travelling Expenses: 
Quarter 1: underspend (£4,932). 
The trend in historic travelling expenses suggests that the actual annual cost is 
likely to be slightly below what has been established in the budget. It is 
anticipated that this will be the case in 2018/19.

2.3 Supplies and Services:
Quarter 1: overspend £28,168. 

        This heading overspends yearly for a number of reasons. This is expected to 
continue in 2018/19. Specifically in 2018/19, difficulties in appointing a temporary 
translator, and an increase for this service on specific projects, is increasing the 
use of external translators.

2.4      Savings to be found
           Quarter 1 : overspend £47,879.

An overspend is expected as there is no permanent strategy identified to 
implement the savings target. Savings from staff turnover (see 2.1) is to be 
used to finance the savings to be found in the short term.

2.5      Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant
           Quarter 1 : Neutral.

In 2018/19 all grants received by GwE, other than the Pupil Development Grant, 
has been amalgamated into one comprehensive grant. The budget has been 
adjusted to reflect these changes. No over/under spend is expected.

A breakdown of the total grant can be seen below:
Delegated* £25,908,641
Non-delegated £  9,198,005
Total £35,106,646
Grant £32,620,366
Match Funding £  2,486,280
Total £35,106,646

* The GwE accounts does not include grants distributed directly to schools.

Page 73



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

3

3. UNDERSPEND FUND

3.1 At the beginning of the 2018/19 financial year, the fund totalled (£271,616).  

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: GwE Budget 2018/19 - 1st Quarter Review 2018/19.

VIEW OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS

Monitoring Officer:

No Comments from a propriety perspective. 

Statutory Finance Officer:

Co-author of report.

Page 74



Appendix 1

GwE JOINT COMMITTEE

Budget Review 2018/19 : First Quarter April - June 2018

Over / (Under)
Opening Adjustments Revised Estimated Spend
Budget Budget Expenditure Net

£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure
Employees
    Salaries
        -  Management, Brokerage, Standards and Administration 957,615 957,615 879,915 (77,700)
        -  System Leader 3,696,935 3,696,935 3,696,935 0
        -  Staff on Secondment 115,670 143,300 258,970 258,970 0
        -  Transferred against 'Specific Projects' (1,652,930) (1,652,930) (1,652,930) 0
    Training, advertising and other employee costs 39,814 39,814 39,814 0

Building
    Rent (includes services) 161,958 161,958 161,958 0
    'Specific Projects' usage of offices recharge (55,000) (55,000) (55,000) 0

Travel
    Travel Costs 128,321 128,321 123,389 (4,932)

Supplies and Services
    Furniture, equipment, printing, postage, telephone, room hire etc 31,012 31,012 56,012 25,000
    Information Technology  15,422 15,422 15,422 0
    Audit Fees 7,832 7,832 11,000 3,168

Brokerage 269,889 269,889 269,889 0

Gwynedd Council Host Authority Support Service Costs
    Legal 5,352 5,352 5,352 0
    Human Resources 9,178 9,178 9,178 0
    Finance 39,690 39,690 39,690 0
    Information Technology 43,898 43,898 43,898 0

Savings to be found - 2018/19 (36,879) (36,879) 0 36,879
Savings to be found - Rent Budget (11,000) (11,000) 0 11,000

National Model Commitments 463,003 463,003 463,003 0

Use of GwE Surplus Fund 0 0 0 0

Specific Projects
    Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant 0 9,198,005 9,198,005 9,198,005 0
    Education Improvement Grant : Commission the Authorities 1,968,287 (1,968,287) 0 0 0
    Education Improvement Grant : Direct Schemes 1,215,682 (1,215,682) 0 0 0
    Raising Standards Grant 2,077,846 (2,077,846) 0 0 0
    Literacy and Numeracy - WG 130,000 (130,000) 0 0 0
    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Looked After Children 844,100 29,900 874,000 874,000 0
    Schools Challenge Cymru (SCC) 0 0 0 0 0
    Supporting the use of Informal Languages - Children and Young People 241,400 (241,400) 0 0 0
    Qualification Reform Support 0 0 0 0 0
    Learning in Digital Wales (LiDW) 101,215 (101,215) 0 0 0
    Physical Literacy Programme in Schools (PLPS) 0 0 0 0 0
    Pioneer Schools 1,140,000 (1,140,000) 0 0 0
    NPQH 150,000 (150,000) 0 0 0
    Business Plan - Additional 0 0 0 0 0
    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Strategic Advisor 100,000 100,000 100,000 0
    Design and Development of the New Curriculum 556,250 (556,250) 0 0 0
    GCSE Support Programme 236,245 (236,245) 0 0 0
    Modern Foreign Languages 108,000 (108,000) 0 0 0
    Support Professional Networks 14,175 (14,175) 0 0 0
    Mentoring and Network Support 22,500 (22,500) 0 0 0
Total Expenditure 13,135,480 1,409,605 14,545,085 14,538,500 (6,585)

Page 75



Appendix 1

Over / (Under)
Opening Adjustments Revised Estimated Spend
Budget Budget Expenditure Net

£ £ £ £ £
Income
Core Service Contributions
   - Anglesey Council         (10.21%) (420,135) (420,135) (420,135) 0
   - Gwynedd Council         (17.61%) (724,584) (724,584) (724,584) 0
   - Conwy Council             (15.39%) (633,098) (633,098) (633,098) 0
   - Denbighshire Council    (15.22%) (626,196) (626,196) (626,196) 0
   - Flintshire Council         (22.65%) (931,676) (931,676) (931,676) 0
   - Wrexham Council        (18.92%) (778,420) (778,420) (778,420) 0

Income from Secondments (115,670) (143,300) (258,970) (258,970) 0

Use of GwE Surplus Fund 0 0 0 0

Specific Projects
    Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant 0 (9,198,005) (9,198,005) (9,198,005) 0
    Education Improvement Grant : Commission the Authorities (1,968,287) 1,968,287 0 0 0
    Education Improvement Grant : Direct Schemes (1,215,682) 1,215,682 0 0 0
    Raising Standards Grant (2,077,846) 2,077,846 0 0 0
    Literacy and Numeracy - WG (130,000) 130,000 0 0 0
    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Looked After Children (844,100) (29,900) (874,000) (874,000) 0
    Schools Challenge Cymru (SCC) 0 0 0 0 0
    Supporting the use of Informal Languages - Children and Young People (241,400) 241,400 0 0 0
    Qualification Reform Support 0 0 0 0 0
    Learning in Digital Wales (LiDW) (101,215) 101,215 0 0 0
    Physical Literacy Programme in Schools (PLPS) 0 0 0 0 0
    Pioneer Schools (1,140,000) 1,140,000 0 0 0
    NPQH (150,000) 150,000 0 0 0
    Business Plan - Additional 0 0 0 0 0
    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Strategic Advisor (100,000) 0 (100,000) (100,000) 0
    Design and Development of the New Curriculum (556,250) 556,250 0 0 0
    GCSE Support Programme (236,245) 236,245 0 0 0
    Modern Foreign Languages (108,000) 108,000 0 0 0
    Support Professional Networks (14,175) 14,175 0 0 0
    Mentoring and Network Support (22,500) 22,500 0 0 0
Total Income (13,135,480) (1,409,605) (14,545,085) (14,545,085) 0

Total Income over Expenditure 0 0 0 (6,585) (6,585)

Memorandum - 
The GwE Surplus Fund

Fund balance as at 1 April 2017 (271,616)
Add/Less - (Under)/Overspend 2018/19 (6,585)

Less - Use of the Fund 0
Fund balance as at 31 March 2019 (278,201)

Information Technology Renewal Fund
Fund balance as at 1 April 2017 (40,057)

Add - Contribution 2018/19 (15,422)
Less - Use of the Fund 0

Fund balance as at 31 March 2019 (55,479)

Page 76



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

1

REPORT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE

26 SEPTEMBER 2018

Report by: GwE Managing Director

Subject: GwE Risk Register

1.0   Purpose of the Report

1.1  To present the latest GwE Risk Register to the Joint Committee.

2.0 Background

2.1 The purpose of the risk register is to formalise the process of identifying risks and   

consequently taking action to mitigate the risk.

2.2 Effective management of the region’s risks will enable GwE to support the region’s 

objectives, make effective use of resources and deliver outcomes as intended.

3.0 Considerations

3.1 The GwE Risk Register is a live document which is kept under regular review.  It is presented 

to the Joint Committee on an annual basis & also when new risks are identified where the 

Joint Committee needs to be made aware.

3.2 All of the risks have been reviewed & updated; with a total of 3 risks being updated (Risks 5, 

11 and 17).

3.3 It is therefore suggested that the risks noted in 3.2 be amended as follows:

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

2

Risk Number Current Activities / Mitigation

5 Senior Lead & Curriculum for Wales team now in post.  Portfolio leads also in 

place.  Significant engagement activity taken place & underway.  Working closely 

with stakeholders. All clusters of schools across the region have appointed a 

cluster lead for Curriculum for Wales. Training has taken place  on Curriculum for 

Wales and change management. Team worked to develop suite of resources to 

support schools with audit of 4 Purposes. All planning within GwE has cross 

reference of the 4 purposes with Curriculum for Wales. Project Manager with 

regard to the Reform Agenda has been appointed.

5 To change the risk level to Orange.

11 Regional Wellbeing Adviser in post.  Review of PDG completed & action plan in 

place.    Regional PDG LAC Coordinator has been appointed .

17 • 6 secondary schools (12.95%) in a statutory category [one came out of last 

year's category and one school that we had identified as a 'high risk school' had 

slipped into the category.

• Of the 6 currently in a category, there is a strong increase in 2 of them and some 

increase in 1. There is an expectation that at least 2 of these schools will be 

removed from a category during the current season.

• An increase in the other 3 schools is limited [one gone into category during the 

summer term] and there is further significant work to be done to ensure the 

occasional improvements

• In addition to the 'statutory category' schools, 8 regional secondary schools 

have been identified as 'high risk'. Very strong possibility of a statutory category 

should an inspection be held there during the next 2 seasons. Very intense 

intervention and support programs are active in these schools and progress is 

monitored by YCG contact. Where concerns are increased, the information is 

shared with LA officers through the Quality Assurance Boards.

Page 78



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

3

The following risk matrix has been followed in determining the residual risk status.

4.0 Recommendations

4.1 The Joint Committee is asked to review the content of the register.

4.2 Determine whether there are any risks that the Joint Committee wish to bring to the 

attention of their respective Cabinet’s etc.

5.0 Financial Implications

5.1 Effective management of risks and financial controls help to monitor costs and enable value 

for money.

6.0 Equalities Impact

6.1 There are no new equalities implications arising from this report.

7.0 Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no new personnel implications arising from this report.

8.0 Consultation Undertaken

8.1 The GwE Senior Leadership Team and the GwE Management Board have discussed the 

content of the register & have amended risks as appropriate.

Page 79



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

4

9.0  Appendices

9.1 GwE Risk Register

OPINION OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS

Monitoring Officer:

A risk monitoring system is an essential part of effective governance. By considering the risk profile 
outlined in the table it is important that the Joint Committee gives detailed attention to the 
assessment and the response.

Statutory Finance Officer:

I believe that the GwE risk register is on a Standard format and includes appropriate information.  

Gwynedd’s Finance Section will provide support to the GwE Managing Director regarding Financial 

risks. Further comments on specific risks, as appropriate, will be reported orally at the meeting of 

the Joint Committee on the 26th September.

Page 80



RISK
NUMBER

REGIONAL or
LOCAL SUMMARY GwE

PRIORITY RISK IDENTIFIED LIKELIHOOD
OF RISK

IMPACT OF
RISK

LIKELIHOOD
X IMPACT CURRENT ACTIVITIES / MITIGATION

RESIDUAL
RISK /

OVERALL RISK

LIKELIHOOD X
IMPACT RISK OWNER FUTURE ACTIONS

1 R Financial ALL Cuts in funding to the GwE Core Budget
affects strategic long term planning.

H H 2A  Medium Term Financial Plan & VFM Policy &
Framework in place. Plans were developed in
conjunction with the Local Authority's Section 151
Officer. The Medium Term Financial Plan includes
details regarding the financial pressure on GwE and
models scenarios. Assumptions are made regarding
the future financial position. A number are appointed
on secondment to ensure flexibility within the service
to react quickly to any changes.

H 2B MD / BM Work with Section 151 Officer to
review Medium Term Financial
Plan & Value for Money Policy &
Framework to be reviewed
periodically. Consult with chief
officers of constituent authorities
regarding the impact of any
potential funding cuts.

2 R Financial ALL Uncertainty regarding grant funding
arrangements from WG hampers strategic
long term planning.  Significant changes and
cuts to the EIG in 2018/19 and 2019/20 could
affect the implementation of the Strategic
Business Plan and the schools' budgets.

H H 2A Assumptions made regarding future funding situation.
Working closely with WG to inform funding situation
for next 3 years. A number of appointments made on
secondment basis to ensure flexibility within the
service to respond quickly to any changes.  Medium
Term Financial Plan in place. The plan was developed
in conjunction with the Section 151 Officer. The
medium term financial plan includes the financial
pressures on GwE and models various sitiations.
Financial modelling work being implemented to steer
decisions

H 2C MD / BM /
Management
Board

Work with Section 151 Officer to
review Medium Term Financial
Plan & Value for Money Policy &
Framework to be reviewed
periodically. Liaise with WG
officials, constituent authorities’
education Cabinet members and
heads of education, to seek
greater transparency and
certainty regarding specific grant
funding. Discussions to be held in
the GwE Management Board

4 R Standards P1/P2 The  difficulties  in  the  recruitment  of  high
quality  trained  teaching  workforce  within
schools  in  the  region  which  impacts  on
standards  in  all  subjects  such  as  English  &
Maths

H H 2A Subject  specific  Challenge  Advisers  in  post  with
corresponding  Level  3  Business  Plans  for
implementation.   #DiscoverTeaching  recruitment
campaign  underway.  Current  work  under
development  regarding  improving  the  ITE  provision
across  the  region  -  North  Wales  Partnership  for
Teacher Education

M 2C MD / AD North  Wales  Partnership  for
Teacher  Education  (CaBan)  to
ensure  an  effective  professional
learning  programme  for   ITE
providers across the region.

5 R Standards P1/P2 That the significant scope of Education reform
underway  to  include  accountability,
professional learning, digital, Welsh language,
curriculum  development,  assessment,
leadership and ALN, is  not fully embraced &
implemented successfully. Schools awareness
of  the  four  purposes  within  Curriculum  for
Wales  and  development  of  the  Areas  of
Learning  and Experience as part of curriculum
reform  is  limited  &  creates  uncertainty  in
schools.  Changes  in  Curriculum  and
qualifications causing uncertainty in schools.

H H 2A Senior Lead & Curriculum for Wales team now in post.
Portfolio leads also in place.   Significant engagement
activity taken place & underway.  Working closely with
stakeholders. All clusters of schools across the region
have  appointed  a  cluster  lead  for  Curriculum  for
Wales.  Training  has  taken  place   on  Curriculum  for
Wales  and  change  management.  Team  worked  to
develop  suite  of  resources  to  support  schools  with
audit of 4 Purposes. All planning within GwE has cross
reference  of  the  4  purposes  with  Curriculum  for
Wales.  Project  Manager  with  regard  to  the  Reform
Agenda has been appointed.

M 2B SL - SF Curriculum  for  Wales  Cluster
Leads  will  be  closely  supported
according to their cluster plan, to
ensure  all  schools  within  their
clusters  have  good  knowledge
and  engagement.  GwE  continue
to  have  5  members  of  staff
involved in development of AOLE
lead  work  for  regular  input  and
feedback.  Build in Curriculum for
Wales awareness resource as part
of  all  leadership  development
programmes. Continue to engage
further with WG to look at role of
change  management  nationally.
Continue  to  develop  change
management  plan  to  support
schools  to  assess  their  readiness
for the new curriculum as reform
develops  -  with  support  of
dashboard/Ysgol  GwE  for  all
schools  to  be  able  to  plot  their
readiness  against  agreed
milestones

6 R Standards P3 Difficulties in the recruitment of Headteachers
across the region / Recruitment of Quality of
leadership at all levels

 M  M 2C Delivery  of  the  NPQH  and  Leadership  Development
Programmes  to  include  programmes  for  aspiring
leaders  &  headteachers.    #DiscoverTeaching
campaign  underway.  Aspiring  Headteacher
programme  to  be  delivered  from  autumn  term
onwards.   NPQH  application  process  complete,
endorsement process to be completed.

M 2D MD / AD Collaboration  with  the  Welsh
Leadership  Academy  and
consortia  leadership  subgroup
regarding  ensuring  effective
professional  learning  for
leadership at all levels.

7 R Standards ALL Cuts  in  school  budgets  are  affecting  schools
ability to continue to raise standards.

H H 2A Finance  Subgroup  working  with  schools  to  reduce
impact.

M/H 2B/2C LA's

8 R Buisness ALL Use of the Education Improvement Grant not
fully  embedded  into  regional  approach  -
reduce speed & impact of the delivery of the
Strategic Business Plan

H H 2A Accountability structure & performance management
processes reviewed.  A review into the use of the EIG
included as part of the Finance Level 3 Business Plan.

H 2B Management
Board

Review to be undertaken & report
to be presented to the GwE
Management Board (Summer /
Autumn 2018)

9 R Governance /
Standards

P6 Uncertainty  regarding  future  direction  of
elements within the National Model.

M M 3A Awaiting impending review from Welsh Government.
Revised  accountability  &  performance  management
structure  in  place.   Restructured  service  with
distributed leadership model in place - ensures service
is more adaptable to change.

M 3B Management
Board

Fully  implement  and  manage
change.

10 R Governance P6 Changes in leadership of authorities can affect
political or corporate buy in

M M 3A Clear  understanding  of  the  responsibilities  of  all
authorities & GwE over the strategic direction of the
region.  New members provided with briefing sessions
&  information  sharing  meetings  held  regularly  (in
addition to the formal Joint Committee meetings)

M 3B LD / MD Continue  to  ensure  that
communication channels are clear
& transparent.

11 R Standards P1/P4 That the Pupil Development Grant is not used
effectively / Performance of FSM pupils.

M M 3A Regional  Wellbeing  Adviser  in  post.   Review  of  PDG
completed & action plan in place.    Regional PDG LAC
Coordinator has been appointed .

M 3B RWA Implement  actions  within  the
business plan & monitor progress
via  the  new  performance
management structure.

12 R Business P1/P3 Governors  do  not  possess  the  necessary
knowledge  & skills  to  act  in  a  critical  friend
capacity.

H H 2B Accountability  structure  &  roles  of  the  regional
networks  reviewed.   Level  3  Business  Plan  in  place.
GwE  portfolio  lead  for  Governors  now  in  place.
Governors online Self Evaluation tool in place & being
rolled out.

M 2C Management
Board

Two  conferences  have  been
arranged  for  members  of
governing bodies on "how to be a
critical  friend"  as  well  as
presentations to schools

Page 81



13 R ALL ALL The  strategic  direction  does  not  reflect  the
views of the Children & Young People in the
region.

M L 4D Providing opportunities for Pioneer & Partner schools
to showcase identified Pupil Voice practice - 15% of
Pioneer schools have showcased work where Pupil
voice has been a feature.

L 4E MD Implement actions within theCfW
Business Plan with regard to Pupil
Voice.

14 R Standards P1 Variation in the performance of individual
local authorities at KS4. The performance of
MAT pupils in individual authorities across the
region varies significantly.

H M/H 2A Key  roles  have  been  restructured  within  GwE  and
Senior  Secondary  Lead appointed  to  lead  a  regional
secondary  team  and  implement  new  support  and
challenge  model.  Accountability  structures  reviewed
and strengthened both at regional and local level. The
result of this is that there is more consistency across
the region and more operational accountability within
the service, and across the LA's. The Estyn secondary
regional profile has improved substantially.

M 2B/2C Management
Board

Implement and evaluate the new
secondary model. Ensure robust
accountability at both regional
and local level. Concers remain on
the full effect of the work on the
KS4 results 2018. The lack of
stability of the secondary team
continues - still too dependant on
short term secondments and
contributions from external
advisors

15 R Standards P1 Pace of improvement in the Foundation Phase
is slower than that seen on a national level.

H M 2A Support package offered to every authority focusing
on  good FP leadership, provision and  high
expectations and standards. Identification of
consistently low performing schools and those at risk.
Targeted support for these schools and clusters of
schools.  Agreement by all LA's to increase capacity
within GwE to support the Foundation Phase - 1
Challenge Adviser in post from September 2017 and
another two from January 2018 to monitor the
perfrormance of individual schools and targetted as
needed. A series of FP moderation workshops held.

M 2C SL - P Continue to monitor the
performance of individual schools
and target as appropriate.
Continue with the moderatioopn
sessions for the Foundation Phase
across the region.

17 R Standards P1 Secondary Schools placed in Estyn Statutory
category.

H H 2A • 6 secondary schools (12.95%) in a statutory category
[one came out of last year's category and one school
that we had identified as a 'high risk school' had
slipped into the category.
• Of the 6 currently in a category, there is a strong
increase in 2 of them and some increase in 1. There is
an expectation that at least 2 of these schools will be
removed from a category during the current season.
• An increase in the other 3 schools is limited [one
gone into category during the summer term] and
there is further significant work to be done to ensure
the occasional improvements
• In addition to the 'statutory category' schools, 8
regional secondary schools have been identified as
'high risk'. Very strong possibility of a statutory
category should an inspection be held there during the
next 2 seasons. Very intense intervention and support
programs are active in these schools and progress is
monitored by YCG contact. Where concerns are
increased, the information is shared with LA officers
through the Quality Assurance Boards.

H 2B MD/AD/Senio
r Leads

Ensure that the necessary support
receives firm attention in support
plans. Ensure that LA's act in a
firm and timely manner in schools
where concerns have been shared
about the speed of progress.

18 R Standards ALL Post-16 learning - New performance measures
and the need for regional education consortia
to increase their emphasis on sixth form
performance (in their ‘support and challenge’
role for schools and to take a cross-consortia
approach to driving improvements to ensure
consistency at a National level) may dilute the
emphasis for regional consortia on standards
at pre-16 education.

M H 2C Potfolio lead identified.Level 3 business plan being
implemented. Agree on Regional Data Collection,
training programme, every SIA to focus on post 16
performance during monitoring visits. Good working
relationship with 14 - 19 coordinators. A number of
schools taking part in Estyn post 16 thematic revue.

M 2D Management
Board / MD

Continue to implement the level 3
Business Plan. Ensure that data is
being used effectively to further
improve the provision and to
ensure more effective structure to
share good practice.

21 R Business P3/P6 Variation in the HR support provided to
schools across the region.

M/H M/H 3A HR level 3 business plan in place in order to coordinate
activity at a regional level.  Need to ensure high quality
and consistent regional HR support for schools.

M 3B Management
Board

Monitor implementation of HR
Level 3 Business Plan via the
revised accountability &
performance management
structure.

Page 82



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/2018

1

REPORT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE

26 September 2018

Report by: GwE Managing Director 

Subject: Level 1 Business Plan – Monitoring Quarter 1 Report

1.0 Purpose of the Report

1.1  To present the Level 1 Business Plan – Monitoring Quarter 1 Report to the Joint Committee.

2.0 Background

2.1 The Regional Business Plan sets out the vision, priorities, actions, outputs and success 

criteria across the region. 

2.2 Progress against the Business Plan will be reported upon quarterly to the Joint Committee.  

3.0 Considerations

3.1 Enclosed is the Monitoring Quarter 1 Report of the Level 1 Business Plan.

3.2      The Level 1 plan is the responsibility of the Managing Director & Chair of the Management 

Board to deliver as the accountable officers.  The Joint Committee are ultimately 

accountable for its delivery.  

4.0 Recommendations

4.1 The Joint Committee is asked to approve the monitoring report for quarter 1.  

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/2018

2

5.0 Financial Implications

5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.  GwE will operate within the 

 current financial resources.  

6.0 Equalities Impact

6.1 There are no new equalities implications arising from this report.

7.0 Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no new personnel implications arising from this report.

8.0 Consultation Undertaken

8.1 The GwE Management Board & Advisory Board have been consulted during the  

development of the Level 1 Business Plan.

9.0  Appendices

9.1 Monitoring quarter 1 report.  

OPINION OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS

Monitoring Officer:

No comments to add from a propriety perspective.

Statutory Finance Officer:

I appreciate the Business Plan, which sets out clear responsibility for appropriate action in the areas 
of business, risk, and value for money, among others.  I note that the author states, in paragraph 5 of 
the report, that there are no financial implications arising from this report.  Whilst it will be 
challenging to implement all aspects of the Business Plan, it is expected that GwE will finance any 
financial implications from within its current budget.  

Page 85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
GwEGogledd.Cymru 

Business Plan 
Level 1 

 
Quarter 1 2018-19 
Monitoring Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 86



 

  2 Page 87



 

  3 

GwE Business Plan 2017-20 
Level 1  

 

1. STANDARDS 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

1 
1.6 
1.7 
E1  
P 
ALl x 
6 
R6 
R7 
R15 

STANDARDS – to ensure 
the highest standards at 
all key stages and that 
all learners make 
appropriate progress in 
literacy and numeracy 
from one key stage to 
another.  That all 
learners achieve 
qualifications relevant 
to their ability and 
potential and are 
working towards been 
bilingual by the age of 
sixteen. 
 
 

Foundation Phase – 
improve the 
performance in 
foundation phase.  
 
 

Improvements in standards at 
the end of the FP across the 
region.   

Marc B Hughes 
 
 

June 2018  Report to be presented in Quarter 2.   

1 
1.8 
1.9  
E1 
P 
ALl x 
6 
R7 

Maintain good 
standards in Key Stage 
2 and improve the 
performance of Conwy 
Local Authority.   

Maintain good standards in 
other local Authorities.   
 
Improve the percentage of 
pupils achieving the CSI.   
 

Marc B Hughes June 2018  Report to be presented in Quarter 2.   

P
age 88



 

  4 

1. STANDARDS 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

1 
1.1 -  
1.5 
U 
ALl x 
6 
R4 
R7 
R14 
 

Improve standards at 
KS4: 

 Improve 

standards in 

core subjects 

at KS4. 

 

Improvement in the 
performance of the L2+ 
indicator by 1.5 the rate of the 
national increase.   
 

The percentage of schools 
performing above the 
median in the FSM 
benchmarking, for L2+, will 
increase by 5%.   
 
55% of schools performing in 
line with or above modelled 
outcome for L2+. 
 
Increase in the proportion of 
pupils achieving 5A*-A grades 
at GCSE or equivalent by 1.5 the 
rate of the national increase.   
 
All schools have good support 
plans with a focus on raising 
standards at KS4. 
 

Elfyn V Jones  August 2018  Report to be presented in Quarter 2.   

1 
1.1 – 
1.10 
E1 
C/U 
ALl x 
6 
R4 
R7 
R11 
R14 

Improve the 
performance of FSM 
learners, especially in 
English Language 
 
 

The gap between our eFSM 
pupils and non-FSM learners 
reduced, by at least 5%, in the 
L2+ and FPI  
 
 

Elfyn V Jones / 
 Marc B Hughes  

August 2018 Report to be presented in Quarter 2.  .   

P
age 89



 

  5 

1. STANDARDS 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

1 
1.1 – 
1.5   
 1.8 
1.9 
E1 
U 
R4 
R7 
R14 
ALl x 
6 

 Improve performance 
in English language.   
 

An improvement in English 
language KS4 results by 1.5 the 
rate of the national increase.   
 

Gaynor Murphy  August 2018 Report to be presented in Quarter 2.   

1 
1.1 – 
1.5   
1.8 
1.9 
E1 
U 
R4 
R7 
R14 
ALl x 
6 

Improve performance 
in maths and 
numeracy 
 

An improvement in Numeracy 
and maths KS4 by 1.5 the rate 
of the national increase.   
 

Dafydd Gwyn /  
Delyth Ellis  

August 2018 Report to be presented in Quarter 2.   

1 
1.1 – 
1.10 
E1 
C/U 
ALl x 
6 
R11 
R14 
R15 
 

Improve performance 
of groups of learners: 

 FSM 

 Boys 

 MAT 

 

Improve the performance of 
groups of learners (FSM, Boys, 
MAT) by 1.5 the rate of the 
national increase - FP and KS4 
 

Elfyn V Jones /  
Marc B Hughes 

August 2018  Report to be presented in Quarter 2.  .   

P
age 90



 

  6 

 
 

2. CURRICULUM AND ASSESSMENT 

Developing a high-quality education profession. 
Robust assessment, evaluation and accountability arrangements supporting a self-improving system 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

2 
2.1 – 
2.4 
2.7 
C 
CaA 
ALl x 
6 
R15 

CURRICULUM AND 
ASSESSMENT – to 
ensure that all schools 
deliver an engaging 
curriculum which 
responds to the 
statutory requirements 
of the national 
curriculum. Ensure that 
all learners are 
supported to achieve 
qualifications which 
enable them to be 
ambitious capable 
learners that reach their 
potential. Ensure all 
schools have robust 
assessment processes in 
place with strong 
targeting, tracking and 
intervention 
 

Improve the provision, 
curriculum planning 
and assessment in the 
Foundation Phase.   
 

All primary schools have 
appropriate curriculum and 
assessment procedures in place 
in the Foundation Phase. 
 

Marc B Hughes  Summer Term 
2018 

Workshops have been held focusing on 
standardisation and moderation of borderline  
Outcome 4/5 and Outcome 5/6 pupils. 
 
Further regional workshops on delivering high 
quality FPh planning and pedagogy for FPh 
teachers and support staff have been 
delivered during the summer term.   
 
201 Teaching Assistants have attended 
Outdoor Learning workshops delivered in 
Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire and Wrexham 
(Gwynedd and Môn delivered during Autumn 
2017). Nearly all commented that they had a 
better understanding of the principles of 
effective outdoor learning and would use the 
ideas shared to develop pupils key skills, 
creativity, problem solving skills and 
wellbeing, through experiential outdoor 
learning.  202 nursery and reception teachers 
and 148 teaching assistants have attended 
'Nursery/Reception' (Outcome 3 and 4) 
numerical reasoning workshops.  Tasks 
completed by attendees following first 
workshop uploaded and shared on Hwb.  
Nearly all who attended commented that they 
had a better understanding of how to plan 
and develop pupils numerical skills through 
differentiated problem solving experiences 
across all areas of learning and provision . 
 
 

P
age 91



 

  7 

2. CURRICULUM AND ASSESSMENT 

Developing a high-quality education profession. 
Robust assessment, evaluation and accountability arrangements supporting a self-improving system 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

2 
2.1 – 
2.8 
U 
CaA 
ALl x 
6 
R5 

Improve curriculum 
design in secondary 
schools to ensure 
enhanced outcomes 
for all learners. 
 

All secondary schools have an 
appropriate curriculum in place 
at KS4 to improve performance 
in KPIs.   

Paul Mathews-
Jones  

Summer Term 
2018  

All 6 Curriculum groups have received 
guidance in accordance with L3 Plan through 
all regional curriculum leaders groups - 
Meirion Dwyfor group have shared good 
practice regarding curriculum development, 
Arfon have created a real culture to move 
forward and Denbighshire have also 
presented through the forum. Support for 
skills development has been very successful in 
PISA sample schools, guidance only in others.  
No conference agreed yet. Schools now ready 
to update KA3. 
 

2 
2.1 – 
2.8 
U 
CaA 
ALl x 
6 
R5 

Improve the quality of 
assessment, tracking 
and intervention 
programmes across 
the secondary schools. 
 
 

Leaders at all levels make 
effective and timely use of 
tracking systems to plan 
effective intervention so that 
90% of schools are within 5% of 
their targets for L2+ and that 
60% are within 2%. 
 
No school to receive an 
unsatisfactory in Inspection 
Areas 3 and 4 during Estyn 
inspection.   
 

Paul Mathews-
Jones 

September 2018  Academic research has been commissioned 
from the University of Warwick, Bangor 
University and WISERD into the creation of a 
multi-level analysis tool.  Support has been 
requested from Welsh Government and a 
review of the Scottish Government analysis 
system was undertaken in July 2018 on a visit 
to Edinburgh.  A visit evaluation has been 
submitted to SLT. 

2 
U 
CaA 
ALl x 
6 
R18 

Improve provision at A 
Level 
 

An improvement in A and AS 
results in line with targets set 
and to be above national 
averages on key indicators. 

Martyn Froggett September 2018 GwE is continuing with the work of looking at 
provision in all areas of the region to ensure 
continuing strength and breadth at post-16.  
Information regarding KS5 data will be 
included when the value added comparative 
data is released. 
 
 

P
age 92



 

  8 

2. CURRICULUM AND ASSESSMENT 

Developing a high-quality education profession. 
Robust assessment, evaluation and accountability arrangements supporting a self-improving system 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

2 
2.1 – 
2.8 
C 
U 
DLl1 
DLl2 
DLl3 
DLl4 
CaA 
ALl x 
6 
R19 

Deliver on Successful 
Futures - Raise 
awareness of the Four 
Purposes within 
Successful Futures and 
development of the 
Areas of Learning and 
Experience as part of 
curriculum reform 
 

All schools are on track to 
deliver the new curriculum.   
Effective skills based curriculum 
in place in 85% of schools from 
the present baseline of 81%.   
 

Ruth Thackery  Continuous The CfW team continues to work with, and 
support all schools across the region, to 
develop the new curriculum and subsequent 
professional learning.  Regular updates on 
curriculum reviews are given to the 
Supporting Improvement Advisers, for further 
dissemination with schools.  Priorities and 
courses of action in order to raise standards 
are identified in Curriculum for Wales plans, 
where appropriate. Members of the Primary, 
Secondary and Curriculum teams collaborate, 
where appropriate, to meet those priorities.   
 
GwE's CfW Team is also working alongside 
Agile Change and ERW to develop a Change 
Management support pack for all SIAs and 
schools.  Some new heads and interim heads 
have had training on Change Management as 
part of their cluster training.  There will be 
opportunity for everybody to receive training 
via the training pack, webinar and face-to-face 
training.   
 
Cluster leads have started on their work and 
are in contact with the CfW team as regards 
planning and cluster engagement. The CfW 
team monitors and supports clusters as the 
work progresses. All cluster leads have 
received training on recent developments to 
share with all schools in the cluster.   

 

 
 
 

P
age 93



 

  9 

 

3. LEADERSHIP 

Inspirational leaders working collaboratively to raise standards 

Ref 
 

Challenge  Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

3 
3.1 – 
3.17 
C 
U 
A 
ALl x 
6 
R6 

LEADERSHIP – to ensure 
that all leaders have a 
clear educational vision 
and can plan 
strategically to achieve 
this. Ensure that all 
learning organisations 
have the leadership 
capacity at all levels to 
inspire, coach, support, 
share practice and 
collaborate at all levels 
to ensure all learners’ 
achieve their potential. 
Ensure that the 
principles of distributive 
leaderships are 
embedded in all 
learning organisations 
across the region. 
 
 

Further, develop and 
improve the quality of 
senior leadership 
across the region. 
 

85% of Senior Leadership 
Teams have good or better 
Quality Assurance and 
accountability processes. 
 
50% reduction in the number of 
schools placed in Statutory 
Estyn Categories. 
 
No school to be unexpectedly 
placed in Estyn Statutory 
Category.   

 
50% reduction in the number of 
schools going into Estyn 
Review.  
 
50% reduction in the number of 
schools awarded grade D in 
stage 2 of the categorisation 
process.    
 
Increase by 25% the number of 
secondary and primary schools 
awarded grade A in stage 2 of 
the categorisation process. 
 

Pam McClean /  
David Edwards  

 

Continuous GwE is providing a range of programmes from 
aspiring senior leaders through to 
experienced Headteachers in line with the 
National Career Development Pathway. The 
development programmes promote school to 
school collaboration with effective 
practitioners from schools co-delivering 
sessions with GwE staff.   This further 
develops the notion of developing a self-
improving system across North Wales. 
 
Meetings have been held with lead 
representatives from each of the Local 
Authorities in the GwE Region to establish the 
exact provision with regard to that provided 
by GwE and that provided by each LA for new 
Headteachers and Acting Headteachers.  

 

3 
3.1 – 
3.17 
C/U 
A 
ALl x 
6 

Further develop and 
improve the quality of 
middle leadership 
across the region. 
 

85% of Middle Leadership 
Teams have good or better 
Quality Assurance and 
accountability processes. 
 
 
 

Ian Kelly Continuous The Middle Leadership Development 
Programme will be implemented as follows: 

 Present a training day to strengthen 
leadership, provision and 
performance, and establish good 
practice [2 Welsh and English 
cohorts]:  

P
age 94



 

  10 

3. LEADERSHIP 

Inspirational leaders working collaboratively to raise standards 

Ref 
 

Challenge  Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

  Programmes to Develop Effective 
Leaders and Improve Practices [SSAT] 

 Present two training programmes for 
middle leaders [2 Welsh and English 
cohorts]: 

 
GwE will also deliver bespoke training and 
target specific support on an individual 
authority basis.    
 

3 
3.1 – 
3.17 
C/U 
DLl1 
DLl2 
DLl3 
DLl4 
A 
ALl x 
6 
R19 

Support SLT to 
effectively deliver on 
Successful Futures. 
 

All schools across the region are 
on track for delivery of 
Successful Futures  

Ruth Thackery Continuous GwE continues to support SLTs, with the team 
boasting a range of experience.  One of the 
team's key roles is to work with, and support 
all schools across the region, to develop the 
new curriculum and subsequent professional 
learning. 
 
Within the Curriculum for Wales strategy, 
there are clear links with the current Primary 
and Secondary teams.  Regular updates on 
curriculum reviews are given to the 
Supporting Improvement Advisers, for further 
dissemination with schools.  Priorities and 
courses of action in order to raise standards 
are identified in Curriculum for Wales plans, 
where appropriate. Members of the Primary, 
Secondary and Curriculum teams collaborate, 
where appropriate, to meet those priorities.   
 

3 
3.1 – 
3.4 
3.6 
3.10  
- 311 

Improve quality of 
departmental 
leadership in 
secondary core 
subjects. 

 English 

85% of core subject 
departments have good or 
better Quality Assurance and 
accountability processes. 
 
Middle leaders make effective 

Gaynor Murphy 
Catrin Wyn Jones 

Dafydd Gwyn 
Nicola Jones 

Continuous All HoD across all cores subjects are given 
guidance and support on key aspects within 
regional and local networks.   
 
The support for each department are 
articulated within individual support plans. 

P
age 95



 

  11 

3. LEADERSHIP 

Inspirational leaders working collaboratively to raise standards 

Ref 
 

Challenge  Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

3.14 
–3.17 
U 
A 
R4 
ALl x 
6 

 Welsh 

 Mathematics  

 Science 

 

and timely use of tracking 
systems to plan effective 
intervention so that 90% of 
schools are within 5% of their 
targets and that 60% are within 
2% in core subjects.   
 

Clear action plan and business plan in place. 
 

3 
3.1 – 
3.17 
C 
U 
A 
R6 
ALl x 
6 

Develop Aspiring 
Headteachers / Senior 
Leaders  
 

Aspiring Leaders programme in 
place. 50 individuals identified 
and completed the programme.  
 
25% of individuals who have 
partaken have applied for or 
been promoted to SLT positions 
by the end of the year. 
 
Positive evaluation received 
from schools and outside 
evaluator on impact of 
programme on individuals. 

Ian Kelly  Continuous GwE is providing a range of programmes from 
aspiring senior leaders through to 
experienced Headteachers in line with the 
National Career Development Pathway. The 
development programmes promote school to 
school collaboration with effective 
practitioners from schools co-delivering 
sessions with GwE staff.   This further 
develops the notion of developing a self-
improving system across North Wales. 
 
Meetings have been held with lead 
representatives from each of the Local 
Authorities in the GwE Region to establish the 
exact provision with regard to that provided 
by GwE and that provided by each LA for new 
Headteachers and Acting Headteachers.  

 

 

4. WELLBEING 

Strong and inclusive schools committed to excellence, equity and well-being 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

4 
4.1 - 
4.12 
C 

WELLBEING – create the 
conditions to ensure 
that learners develop as 
healthy, resilient and 

Develop and 
Implement an 
overarching strategy 
for Wellbeing across 

Strategy implemented across 
the region. 
 
Effective collaborative 

Sharon Williams  November – 
December 2018. 

Further work needs to be done to complete 
the overview of Wellbeing within the 
organisation.  A range of meetings have been 
completed with LA's and GwE staff and WG. 

P
age 96



 

  12 

4. WELLBEING 

Strong and inclusive schools committed to excellence, equity and well-being 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

U 
Ll 
R11 
ALl x 
6 
 

globally responsible 
individuals and provide 
an inclusive, 
aspirational education 
system, committed to 
tackling inequality so 
that young people 
achieve their full 
potential. 

the region.   approach to deliver an 
overarching national agenda 
with clear roles and 
responsibilities of all 
partnerships. 
 
Effective partnership working 
with all key agencies that 
support the wellbeing agenda 
to impact positively on all 
learners.   
 
Most schools make effective 
use of the pupil development 
grant. 

Clear action plan and business plan in place. 

 

5. TEACHING 

Developing a high-quality education profession 

Ref 
 

Challenge Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

5 
5.1 – 
5.9 
C/U 
D 
R4 
ALl x 
6 
 

TEACHING – to ensure 
that all teachers and 
support staff are 
equipped to have a clear 
understanding of what 
constitutes effective 
teaching, based on 
reliable evidence. In 
addition, the ability to 
deliver a range of 
approaches, effectively 
matching the needs of 
the learners with the 

Improve and 
strengthen the role of 
leaders in leading the 
teaching and learning. 
 

All SLT and ML in schools have 
the necessary skills and 
understanding of good and 
outstanding teaching in order 
to provide guidance and 
training within their respective 
schools.    
 
Effective teaching in place in 
85% of schools from the 
present baseline of 81%.   
Estyn expectations of 85% or 
more of lessons to be good or 

Stella Gruffydd / 
Bethan James  

November 2018   Regional workshops have taken place to train 
school leaders to use the Teaching and 
Learning continuum effectively. 150 schools 
across the region took part in these 
workshops. 
 
All HoD across all cores subjects are given 
guidance and support on leading the teaching 
and learning within regional and local 
networks.   

 

P
age 97



 

  13 

 

6. BUSINESS 

Ref 
 

Challenge  Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

6 
B 
 

BUSINESS – to ensure that 
GwE has strong 
governance and effective 
business and operational 

Fully embed the G6 
across the region and 
continue to develop 
the effective use of 

Effective and timely use of 
information across all levels of 
implementation.  
 

Llyr G Jones June 2018  
 
 

Effective rollout of initial G6 training 
completed for all schools across the six 
authorities between January and May 2018.                                                                     
Phase 2 work programme effectively 

context, to ensure 
positive impact on 
learning and 
achievement is 
paramount 

better achieved by 85% of 
schools across the region.   
 
An overall increase of 5% in 
terms of good or better 
judgements for teaching and 
learning for all schools 
inspected by Estyn. 
 

5 
5.1 – 
5.9 
C/U 
D 
R4 
ALl x 
6 
 

Improve the quality of 
teaching and the 
experiences for 
learners 

High risk schools with key issues 
in terms of teaching and 
learning are given bespoke 
support and training (to be 
confirmed).   
 
Standards of teaching 
participating in the   Formative 
Assessment and Pedagogy  
Project  - led by Shirley Clarke 
Action research teams schools - 
consistently good or better, 
with participating individuals in 
tier 1 demonstrating excellent 
practice. Estyn reports on any 
participating schools confirming 
this.     
 
Positive impact on pupil 
standards at expected and 
higher level. 

Stella Gruffydd / 
Bethan James 

November 2018  There is effective joint working between the 
region and the well-known education 
practitioner, Shirley Clarke. 27 schools have 
been selected across the region to work 
together as research teams led by Shirley 
Clarke. Tier 1 schools have successfully 
completed their work. Day 2 with Shirley 
Clarke took place on June 14 and 15. 201 Tier 
2 schools have been selected through a robust 
process. Information has been communicated 
with the schools regarding events and training 
in the Autumn term.   

P
age 98



 

  14 

6. BUSINESS 

Ref 
 

Challenge  Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

support that provides 
value for money. 
 

the system to 
facilitate 
collaboration and the 
sharing of successful 
practice.  
 

Wider range of data and live 
information on progress on 
hand for SIAs, LA Officers and 
schools 
 

completed including the development of 
collaborative priorities and resource library.                                            
A series of effective regional surgeries were 
held for SIAs and administrative staff across 
the region. A series of guidance documents, 
including video clips were also produced for 
both GwE and school users to support new 
developments in the system.                                                
Early consultations held with both Primary 
and Secondary head teachers across the 
region have yielded positive feedback.  
 
Responses gathered from head teachers 
during the WG National Accountability 
conference referenced the positive use of G6.                                                                         
All SIA's tasked with identifying successful 
practice case studies during the summer term 
visit to populate G6.  
 
Initial discussions held on the development of 
QA processes for reports and school 
involvement.   Phase three development will 
include a specific proflie for Ysgol GwE on the 
main G6 dashboard. 
 

6 
B 
6.7 
 

Undertake an 
organisational health 
survey 

Aim for top quartile 

performance in organisational 

health index. 

Susan O Jones Continuous  Pending.   

6 
B 
6.8 
 

Establish GwE as a 
Learning organisation 
working in 
partnership with WG 
and OECD 

Show year on year progress 

against the 7 dimensions of 

Learning Organisation model 

 

Rhys H Hughes  Continuous GwE is continuing to work with the OECD on 
developing the Consortia and LA as learning 
organisations. Any lessons learned from this 
work are shared with other regions, and 
internationally, as we are attempting to 
develop further as a vibrant and healthy 

P
age 99



 

  15 

6. BUSINESS 

Ref 
 

Challenge  Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

organisation.  
 
Professional Learning Schools have been 
working on developing various pilot studies.  
This includes working with the OECD on the 7 
dimensions of Schools as Learning 
Organisations, the Professional Learning Offer 
for Digital Learning and also on trialling the 
Professional Teaching Standards.   
 
GwE continues to work with Schools as 
Learning Organisation and share experiences 
of working with Professional Teaching and 
Leadership standards 
 

6 
B 
 

Continue to develop 
the working 
relationship and 
develop 
opportunities for 
action research for 
schools across the 
region.   
 

 Rhys H Hughes  GwE is continuing to develop the working 
relationship and is developing opportunities 
for action research for schools across the 
region. 
   
The "Collaborative Institute for Education 
Research, Evidence and Impact (CIEREI)" 
between GwE and Bangor University means 
that two establishments are working together 
to look at establishing effective evaluation 
systems within our establishment.  The 
collaboration involves looking at developing 
action research in terms of wellbeing 
elements, and also researching into effective 
leadership elements.   
 
Bangor University and GwE are also working 
effectively on promoting evidence-based 
strategies, to improve outcomes for example 
the NorthWORTS-SP project with Bangor 

P
age 100



 

  16 

6. BUSINESS 

Ref 
 

Challenge  Actions Outputs and success criteria 
2017-2018 

Responsible Target Date Quarter 1 Monitoring 

University's Schools of Psychology and 
Education.   
 
GwE has collaborated closely with CIEREI to 
provide effective support on developing 
research practice for a range of schools and 
specific Advisers across the region. 
Collaboration has successfully mapped out 
research and methods and evidence.  
Practitioners have used this 'map' to enrich 
their approaches to literacy across the 
curriculum, STEM subjects, improve feedback 
and increase the level of challenge in lessons.    

 

 

 
 

 

P
age 101



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

1

REPORT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE

26/09/2017

Report by: GwE Managing Director 

Subject: Initial report to the GwE Joint Committee on the region’s performance 

1.0   Purpose of the Report

1.1 To present early information on the region’s performance for the 2017/18 academic year.

2.0 Background & Considerations

2.1  The main purpose of the report is to present early information on the region’s performance 

for the 2017/2018 academic year. 

2.2 The content of this report is different to previous years due to Welsh Government 
introducing significant changes to how performance measures are reported.  Following 
Welsh Government consultation on future publication of teacher assessments, Welsh 
Government no longer publish comparative Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 
data at school, local authority and consortia level and therefore beyond a comparison with 
national averages,  there  is no comparative nor benchmarking  information available. 

2.3 It must be stressed that it is the initial information regarding KS4 results that is shared and 
there is no access thus far to comparative and benchmarking data. We intend to update the 
information when we have the full information is available. 

Page 106

Agenda Item 9



GwE: Joint Committee 26/09/18

2

3.0 Recommendations

3.1.1 The Joint Committee is asked to note the content of the report.

4.0 Financial Implications

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5.0 Equalities Impact

5.1 There are no new equalities implications arising from this report.

6.0 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no new personnel implications arising from this report.

7.0 Consultation Undertaken

7.1 The GwE Management Board has been consulted during the development of the report.

8.0  Appendices

8.1 Initial report to the GwE Joint Committee on the region’s performance.  

OPINION OF THE STATUTORY OFFICERS

Monitoring Officer:

No comments to add from a propriety perspective.

Statutory Finance Officer:

I note in part 4 of the report that the author has confirmed that there are no financial implications 
arising from this report. Therefore, I have nothing to add to the report in terms of financial propriety 
perspective.  

Page 107



1

Initial report to the 
GwE Joint Committee on the 

region’s performance
 

September 2018

Page 121



2

CONTENT 

1. Context

2. Standards

Narrative overview of performance across the region – Primary and Secondary 
- Foundation Phase
- Key Stage 2
- Key Stage 3
- Key Stage 4 

3. Inspection Profile

4. Target Setting

5. National Categorisation 

Page 122



3

1. CONTEXT

COMPARATIVE DATA

The content of this report is different to previous years due to Welsh Government introducing 
significant changes to how performance measures are reported.  Following Welsh 
Government consultation on future publication of teacher assessments, Welsh Government 
no longer publish comparative Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 data at 
school, local authority and consortia level  and therefore beyond a comparison with national 
averages,  there  is no comparative nor benchmarking  information available. 

CHANGES TO AREAS OF LEARNING IN THE FOUNDATION PHASE
 
In October 2014 the Foundation Phase Areas of Learning (AoL) for Language, Literacy and 
Communication Skills and Mathematical Development were revised to align them with the 
National Literacy and Numeracy Framework (LNF) as well as make them more demanding. In 
line with this the Foundation Phase outcomes were recalibrated to align with the increased 
expectations of the revised Areas of Learning.  

The revised AoL were introduced on a statutory basis from September 2015. This means that 
the cohort of children that started Reception in September 2015 were the first children to be 
formally assessed against the revised outcomes at the end of the Foundation Phase in the 
summer of 2018.  Comparisons of Foundation Phase outcomes with previous years at school 
level should, therefore, be avoided as they are not measured on a comparable basis.

KS4 AND KS5

It must be stressed that the initial information regarding KS4 results will be shared but there is 
no access thus far to comparative and benchmarking data. We intend to update the 
information below when we have the full information to hand. 

Therefore, care is needed when considering the information as neither the analyses nor the 
comparisons will be completed on a national level until the beginning of next year. Information 
regarding KS5 will be included when the value added comparative data is released. 

2. STANDARDS 

PRIMARY – OVERVIEW OF PERFORAMNCE ACROSS THE REGION

FOUNDATION PHASE 

This year’s results in the Foundation Phase shows a national decrease when compared to 
previous years. The main reason for this is the fact that new outcomes from the FP 
Assessment Framework have been used in language and mathematics.  Many teachers are 
under the impression that there are higher expectations to achieve an Outcome and this is 
one factor that has led to fewer pupils achieving Outcome 5. 

This national decrease in the results is reflected in the region’s results. GwE anticipated this 
and has focused on improving provision in the Nursery and Reception classes, which will 
provide a robust base for achieving higher outcomes by the time the pupils reach the end of 
the Key Stage. 

Page 123



4

Strengths and successes

 Although performance regionally has fallen, the decrease is below the national dip at 
the expected outcome (O5+) with exception to LLC(W).  On the higher than expected 
outcome (O6+), the regional decrease is considerably below the national dip across 
all areas .

 Generally, outcome 6+ performance continues to be strong.  
 Schools have responded well to the various foundation phase training workshops and 

network meetings for SMT, teachers and support staff.  This is evidenced by how 
schools have raised the level of challenge to meet the new requirements of outcome 
6.

Areas for Improvement

 Improve performance of FSM pupils at the expected and higher than 
expected outcome.

 Improve performance of boys at the expected outcome and at the higher outcome in 
in  LLC(W), LLC(E) and PSD.

 Develop the use of small data to improve provision and outcomes.
 Further strengthen cluster working to promote collaboration and share good practice.

KS2

The region’s KS2 results are strong. This year’s performance at the expected level is in mostly 
line with last year’s results and continues to be above the national average for the CSI. The 
one exception is that Welsh language performance at the expected level is slightly down. One 
factor could be that more learners were assessed through Welsh as a first language than ever 
before. However, the percentage of learners achieving the expected levels in Welsh as a 
second language increased again for the fifth year.

At the higher levels, performance continues to be strong in all subjects. Second language 
Welsh results made a notable improvement. The variance between boys and girls 
performance reduced this year and is now below the national average. FSM learners 
maintained previous year’s results with the exception being Welsh Language where less FSM 
pupils achieved to gain the expected levels. However, the highest ever number of FSM pupils 
were assessed through the Welsh language.

Comparing this year’s end of Key Stage 2 data with end of Foundation Phase data from 2014, 
the region’s matched pupils on average made above expected progress in Welsh, English and 
Mathematics. 

Strengths and Successes

• Key Stage 2 performance continues to be strong at both the expected and higher 
levels.

• An increased percentage of learners assessed in Welsh as a second language 
achieved at both expected and higher levels.

• Schools have responded well to the various Literacy, Numeracy and Teaching and 
Learning training programmes provided. This is evidenced by consistently strong 
performance in all core subjects.

• This year’s KS2 cohort made above expected progress in Welsh, English and 
Mathematics during their time in KS2.

Page 124



5

Areas for Improvement
• Tackling the impact of deprivation on educational attainment continues to be a priority.
• Further strengthen cluster working to promote collaboration and to share good 

practice. 
• Ensure that schools choosing to change their assessment policy and assess learners 

in the Welsh Language are fully supported.

SECONDARY - OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE ACROSS THE REGION

KEY STAGE 3 

Performance in the main indicator [CSI] in KS3 was again strong and demonstrated further 
improvement on the 2017 figure [+0.6% in comparison with a national increase of +0.7%]. The 
region continues to perform above the national average [+1.3% 2017 and +1.2% 2018].

The performance of boys and girls improved in the main indicator [+0.3% and + 0.8% 
respectively]. Both performances are above the national average for 2017 and 2018 with a 
broadening of the gap for girls. The regional gender gap, however, increased by +0.5% to 
7.0% in 2018 with girls continuing to outperform boys. Nationally, the gender gap closed by 
0.4% and the figure for the region in 2018 corresponds to the national average.

There was also an increase of +0.4% in the percentage of FSM pupils that achieved the CSI 
indicator. There is no 2018 national data available at the moment. Whilst the performance of 
eFSM pupils has steadily improved over the three year rolling period, the gap between 
eFSM/non-FSM saw a further slight increase of +0.2% in 2018 and currently stands at 18.2%. 
The corresponding national figure in 2017 was 20.3%

Welsh:   

Further improvements to the standards of Welsh can be seen at the expected level in 2018. 
Regional performance has seen an increase of 0.3% to 94.2%. This is in comparison with the 
national increase. Regional performance remains + 0.4% higher than the national figure. Boys' 
performance has fallen -1.6% to 79.4% compared to a national increase of + 0.7%. There is 
also a slight decrease in girls performance again compared to a national increase of + 0.6%. 
This year, the boys / girls gap has increased from + 1.4% to 10.8%. Nationally, there is a slight 
reduction in the gap to 11.9% in favor of the girls. The performance of FSM learners has 
increased by + 0.4% to 73.9%. The national figure for 2017 was 70.8%. The gap between the 
performance of FSM / non FSM learners has increased from 18.0% to 18.2%. The national 
gap was 20.3% in 2017.

At level 6+, there is a slight decrease of -0.3% to 66.8% while nationally, there has been an 
increase of + 0.9% to 63.8%. Boys' performance has fallen by -2.9% to 55.8% but remains 
above the national figure of 53.5%. The girls have increased by +2.5% to 78.2% compared 
to an increase of + 1.6% at the National level. In 2018 the regional performance for girls is 
+4.4% above the national average. However, the boys / girls gap has increased by 5.4% to 
22.4% in 2018. A national increase of +1.2% to 20.3% was seen. The performance of FSM 
learners has improved +0.4% on L6 + and the performance of 73.9% is higher than the 
national figure for 2017 [70.8%]

At level 7+, there is an increase of + 3.7% to 26.3% compared with a national increase of + 

Page 125



6

2.8% to 22.5%. The performance of boys and girls has seen an increase on the figures of 
2017 [+ 2.6% B and +4.8% G] and the performance [19.3% and 33.5%] is higher than the 
corresponding national figures of 15.8% and 29.0 %

Strengths and Successes

 Regional performance has increased from 0.3% to 94.2% and remains +0.4% higher 
than the national figure.

 At level 6+ girls have increased +2.5% to 78.2% compared to an increase of +1.6% 
at the national level.

 At level 7+, performance is higher than the corresponding national figures.

Areas for Development

 Continue to improve boys' performance.
 Continue to improve the performance of FSM learners especially at higher levels.
 Continue to support departments where there is concern about standards.

English:

Performance at KS3 English remains consistently strong.  GwE’s performance is above the 
National average at Level 5 + and 6+. 

Strengths and Successes

 Performance at Level 5+ increased by 0.4% to 92% and performance across all LEAs has 
remained consistently strong.

 Improving standards of Literacy remains a key priority for all schools and improvements 
have been made in the quality of Literacy provision. This has been supported by the GwE 
team through the development of high quality resources and training.

 Performance at Level 6+ saw the most significant increase of 2.7% and reflects the 
regional focus on challenging more able learners at KS3.

 Stronger and more collaborative working relationships are developing between secondary 
English departments and their feeder primaries and this is reflected in classroom practice. 

 The variation between the performance of boys/girls in English remains below the national 
average. A significant amount of work this year has been undertaken to review KS3 course 
structures and ensure more dynamic and engaging material/ methodologies are being 
utilised . 

Areas for Development

 Improving the performance of FSM Learners in English remains a priority particularly at 
Level 5+ where the gap between FSM/ Non FSM learners has slightly widened by 1.5%. 

 Implement a pilot ‘Literacy Intervention Programme’ into a small number of target 
secondary schools in order to raise the performance of FSM learners in English. Share 
this practice and cascade regionally.

 Provide training and support to ensure the DCF is embedded effectively at KS3 to raise 
standards. 

 Continue to support schools in  improving the performance of boys particularly at Level 
6+ .

 Develop methodology and approaches to the teaching of writing at KS3 in order to ensure 
students are better prepared for GCSE

Page 126



7

Mathematics: 

Strengths and successes

 L5+ has increased.
 30 schools have improved their L5+ [56%] performance, with 4 of them having 

increased substantially [7%].
 26 schools have improved their L6+ [48%] performance, 12 of which have substantially 

increased [22%].

Areas for Improvement

 The percentage for L6+ has fallen slightly.  
 22 schools have seen a decrease in their L5+ [41%] performance, with 2 schools having 

decreasing significantly [4%] in their performance.
 27 schools have seen a decrease in their L6+ [50%] performance, with 8 schools 

decreasing significantly in their performance [15%].
 Improve the provision for mathematics across the region - to align pedagogy with the 

direction of the curriculum development.
 Improve teaching and learning in departments.
 Create joint plans in clusters of secondary schools for the new curriculum.

Science: 

Strengths and successes

 The percentage of pupils achieving the expected level in Science has been maintained 
from 2017 (2017 = 94.6%, 2018 94.5%).

 29 schools (53.7%) maintained/improved their performance from 2017 at level 5+.
 10 schools (18.5%) achieved 100% level 5+, which was a 100% increase from 2017.
 There has been a year on year increase in performance at level 6+ across the region.
 32 schools (60.4%) have increased their performance at level 6+ from 2017, with 6 schools 

(11.3%) increasing by over 10%.
 30 schools (56.6%) have increased their performance at level 7+ from 2017, with 11 

schools (20.8%) increasing by over 5%.

Areas for Improvement

 The performance of FSM pupils at all levels in below that of nonFSM learners, and the gap 
has increased slightly in 2018 at level 5 and level 6+.

 The variance of performance of FSM pupils at level 7+ is 20.7%.
 21 schools (39.6%) decreased their performance at level 6+ from 2017, with 7 schools 

(13.2%) decreasing by over 10%.
 23 schools (43.4%) decreased their performance at level 7+, with 5 schools (9.4%) 

decreasing by over 10% from 2017.
 In many schools the KS3 schemes of work/curriculum does not sufficiently prepare the 

learners or support learning at KS4.

Page 127



8

KEY STAGE 4

CONTEXTUAL INFORMATION FOR 2018 EXAMINATIONS

Following the changes in 2016-17 there remains significant volatility in GSCE outcomes. 
Significant changes to the pattern and numbers of pupils sitting exams in the Summer 2018 
has had an impact on results as demonstrated in the proportion  of grades across all subjects 
in the A+ to C range in Wales decreasing by 1.2pp to 61.6%. 

GCSEs are being reformed and 15 updated subjects were sat this summer for the first time.

The new GCSE suite of qualifications in Science was examined for the first time in 2018, and 
coincides with the changes to the performance indications at KS4, to include only GCSE 
results for Science, as two measures in the capped 9 indicator. As a result, comparison with 
historical data is not applicable.  Schools were able to select pathways from a triple Science 
route, Double award Science, Double award Applied Science and Single award Applied 
Science. As the capped 9 indicator includes two Science measures, the majority of schools 
followed the triple and double award pathways.

There has been significant change to grade boundaries since the Summer of 2017 and 
November 2017 compared to the Summer of 2018, particularly at C grade in English and 
mathematics. This has made it difficult for schools to ensure accurate projections and target 
setting. Initial analysis suggests that schools data has been significantly influenced by 
registration decisions. 

School performance should be considered against its own performance trajectory as it is not 
appropriate to compare schools against each other due to the different contexts and stages of 
improvement. 

INITIAL ANALYSIS - KEY STAGE 4 

It is difficult to draw any significant conclusions at this stage owing to the major changes in 
curriculum and grade boundaries and the lack of national comparators. Work is still ongoing 
to collate the Capped 9. The indicators most impacted by the above mentioned changes has 
been the L2+ and English.  

In 2018, there was a decrease of -1.7% to 51.9% in the main indicator [L2+] in comparison 
with 2017, with a decrease of -1.8% at L1.  L2 saw a small increase of +0.1% to 65.4% whilst 
the 5A*/A plateaued at 14.8%. Initial figures for eFSM performance are disappointing with a 
decrease across all the main indicators. L2+ dropped to 24.6% from 26.9% in 2017 [national 
average for 2017 28.6%].  

Welsh: 

This is the second year for the new qualification, with 70% of the subject dependent on 
performance in two external examinations and 30% oral work. This year, there was an 
increase of +1.0% on the 2017 figure with the 2018 performance at 71.6%. The performance 
of FSM learners, however, is -4.5% lower than last year's figure. 10 schools [45.4%] have 
improved on the performance of 2017 and 2 schools [9.1%] made significant improvements 
this year. At the Level 2 indicator, the majority of schools in the region have crossed the 
threshold of 70% +. There was a significant reduction in the performance of 3 schools [13.6%].

Page 128



9

Strengths and successes

 An increase of +1.0% on the 2017 figure with the 2018 performance at 71.6%.
 The majority of schools in the region have crossed a 70% + threshold on the Level 2 

indicator.

Areas for improvement

 Continue to improve the performance of FSM learners.
 Continue to support departments where there is concern about standards.

English: 

Performance in GCSE English Language decreased this year regionally from 61.6 (2017) to 
56.2% A* to C.  Issues with the changes to WJEC grade boundaries and access to early entry 
opportunities have impacted on performance in English Language across the region. This 
needs further investigation. Performance in the writing sections of both papers remains an 
issue across Wales. The average score for the writing sections is approximately half marks 
for both the quality and accuracy of students’ writing. 

Strengths and successes

 Of the 7 schools in red support category, 5 improved on 2017 performance. 
 Most schools who received intensive support from the GwE English team have seen 

an increase in their performance from last year..
 High quality CPD delivered this year has been praised by Heads of Departments and 

Head teachers. Heads of Department have received a wealth of high quality training 
to support them in their role 

 Coaching underperforming teachers and modelling excellence, in a small number of 
schools,  has been successful in improving standards of teaching and learning

Areas for Improvement

 Improve standards in GCSE English Language through targeting and supporting under 
– performing departments. 

 Improve standards of attainment in the writing sections of the examination units 
through regional training and individual school support.

 Improve the performance of A/A* learners  in GCSE English Language. 
 Improve tracking and monitoring of student performance through the implementation 

of a regional assessment and tracking system.
 Improve teaching and learning experiences through coaching, modelling and 

developing classroom practice.   

Mathematics: 

Overall, the results for the best grade across the counties have remained constant, with the 
attainment for Numeracy being stronger overall in our schools across the region. There is a 
positive picture generally, but some schools are of concern - especially where the difference 
between mathematics and numeracy maths is significant, or where there is a significant 
difference between their performance and their 2017 results.

Page 129



10

Strengths and successes

 30 schools [55.5%] have improved on their Mathematics performance of 2017, with 7 
schools [12.9%] seeing a significant increase in their percentage points.

 31 schools [57.4%] have improved their Mathematics Numeracy performance of 2017 with 
7 schools [12.9%] significantly improving their percentage points.

 32 [59.2%] schools have improved on their performance for the best grade on 2017 results, 
with 6 schools [1.1%] having seen a significant increase in their percentage points.

 Departments that work effectively to share best practice across the region.

Areas for Improvement

 6 schools [11.1%] have seen a significant reduction in their performance for mathematics 
- there will be a need for sudden visits to these schools to find out why the results have 
dropped. 

 4 schools [7.4%] have seen a significant reduction in their performance for numeracy 
mathematics - the same schools that have seen a significant reduction in the results for 
mathematics.

 4 schools [7.4%] have seen a significant reduction in their performance in the best grade 
for mathematics.  

 Scrutinize the teaching and learning experiences pupils receive in the schools where 
numeracy is weaker than the mathematics (5 schools with a difference of 4% or more) - 
and working with the schools to improve the provision for numeracy.

 Ensure that the curriculum provided gives attention to mathematics and numeracy, and 
work with the schools where the result for mathematics is significantly lower than for 
numeracy.

 Improve the teaching and learning in the departments where they have underperformed 
– prioritizing the schools where this is a pattern over time.

 Improve the quality of leadership in departments where there are new Heads of 
Department / numeracy coordinators, or where leadership is weak.

Science: 

Strengths and successes

 62.8% of pupils in the region achieved at least one GCSE in Science at L2.
 There has been an 11.8% increase in the performance from the end of year 10 when 51% 

of pupils were on track to achieve at least one level 2 GCSE in Science. 
 All 54 schools made improvements from the end of year 10 results, and 12 schools (22%) 

increased their results by 20% and above.
 In 9 schools (16.6%), the level 2 exceeded 80%, with one school achieving 90%.
 In 26 schools (48.1%), the level 2 exceeded 70%.

Areas for Improvement

 8 schools (14.8%) failed to achieve above 50% L2 in Science. 
 The percentage of pupils achieving L2 in Science varies significantly in schools across 

the region from 40.5% to 90%.
 The gap between the performance at KS4 and the internal projections is of concern in 

many schools. Data tracking systems, quality assurance and standardisation of internal 
assessments is not sufficiently robust, and many departments are unable to project 
outcomes with a good level of accuracy.

Page 130



11

3. INSPECTION PROFILE    

The inspection profile is good across both sectors in the region. During academic year 2017-
2018, Estyn undertook an inspection in 69 schools (59 primary schools, 7 secondary schools 
and 3 special school).  (Official data to be released September 2018).  

Primary - In 51 schools (86.4%), it was announced that no follow-up action was needed 
compared to 77.6% in 2016-17 ; 13.6% required follow up action compared to 24.2% in 2016-
17. 7 (11.9%) were awarded the least intensive follow-up category [Estyn Review] and 1 
(1.7%) was place the Significant  Improvement category. There are currently 13 schools in a 
follow-up category. 

The percentage of schools receiving excellent judgements increased from 2.4% in 2016/17 to 
13.2% in 2017/18.

Secondary – In 4 secondary schools, it was announced that no follow-up action was needed; 
2 were awarded the least intensive follow-up category [Estyn Review] and one was placed in 
Special Measures.  In 6 schools [85.7%], judgements for inspection areas 2 [Wellbeing and 
attitudes to learning] and 4 [Care, Support and Guidance] were judged to be good or better. 
During 2017-18 3 regional secondary schools were removed from statutory category and a 
further 4 were removed from Estyn Monitoring. The current regional profile sees 6 schools 
[12.9%] in statutory category. Progress in 2 of the schools has been strong and steady in 1. 
We fully expect for at least 2 of these schools to be taken out of category within the first term. 
In 3 schools, progress is limited and further significant improvements are required. The 
respective local authority officers are fully aware of our concerns and detailed support plans 
have been agreed with key stakeholders.

Special – no follow-up action was needed with one school, and one was awarded the least 
intensive follow-up category [Estyn Review].  

4. TARGET SETTING

In May 2018, the Cabinet Secretary for Education published a Written Statement providing an 
update on Key Stage 4 school performance measures arrangements for 2019 onwards. This 
announced the introduction of new ‘interim’ Key Stage 4 performance measures to be reported 
against from September 2019 (2018/19 cohort data). These ‘interim’ measures, based on point 
scores, will replace the existing suite of Key Stage 4 performance measures, including the 
Level 1 and Level 2 inclusive measures, from 2019.

In the other key stages, Welsh Government has already legislated to:
 discontinue the routine publication of the Teacher Assessment and National Reading 

and Numeracy Test data at a school and regional level from 2018/19; and
 ensure that the 2016/17 publication of this data at a school and regional level to the 

public, partners, stakeholders and policy makers will be the last year that this is done.

Welsh Government (WG) have been urgently considering the school target setting 
requirements, in view of the changes being brought in, and have been engaging with the sector 
on how these arrangements could be managed in the short term. However, the required 
legislative procedure hasn’t allowed WG to align the statutory requirements as immediately as 
desired. 

Current Target Setting Requirements 

Page 131

https://gov.wales/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2018/ks4performmeasures/?lang=en


12

At Key Stage 4, schools are required to set final, reviewed and provisional targets against the 
percentage of pupils achieving the Level 1 and Level 2 inclusive measures, along with three 
targets based on self-evaluation. These targets need to be submitted to, and agreed by, the 
Local Authority no later than 31 December. Given our move away from threshold measures, 
we recognise that it no longer make sense to require schools to set targets against what will 
soon become obsolete school performance measures.

The table below sets out the current target setting statutory requirements for the relevant key 
stages:

Welsh Government (WG) are working towards removing the prescriptive nature of targets 
(including Level 1 and Level 2 inclusive at Key Stage 4) in favour of increasing the number of 
non-prescriptive targets based on the outcome of self-evaluation.

The required legislative process means it will be impossible for WG to implement the proposed 
changes prior to 31 December 2018, when targets are required to have been set by schools 
and agreed by the Local Authority. There will, therefore, be a period where the requirements 
of the regulations do not reflect WG intentions or expectations in terms of target setting.

During this transitional period, schools and Local Authorities will need to consider what targets 
would be most appropriate to set this year.

Way forward

Effective self-evaluation, target-setting and planning for improvement is at the core of ensuring 
improved outcomes for pupils. The raising of standards requires the profession to critically 
evaluate and, if necessary, change what they do and how they do it. Effective target-setting 
plays a key role in raising standards, and must be undertaken at the same time as planning 
for improvement.

Setting targets allows schools to focus on what they currently do and the improvements they 
wish to bring about. It contributes to school effectiveness but only when it is carried out as part 

Key Stage 2 
(Year 6 pupils) 

Key Stage 3 
(Year 9 pupils) 

Key Stage 4 
(Year 11 pupils) 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 4 or above 
in English 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 5 or above 
in English 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving the Level 2 
Threshold including 
English/Welsh and 
Mathematics 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 4 or above 
in Welsh first language 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 5 or above 
in Welsh first language 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving the Level 1 
Threshold 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 4 or above 
in Mathematics 

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 5 or above 
in Science

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 4 or above 
in Science

Percentage of pupils 
achieving Level 5 or above 
in Mathematics

Local Target 1 Local Target 1 Local Target 1 
Local Target 2 Local Target 2 Local Target 2 
Local Target 3 Local Target 3 Local Target 3
*Local Targets should reflect  priorities identified through self-evaluation 

Page 132



13

of the process of planning for improvement.  What is key is that schools identify and set 
appropriate improvement targets linked to their improvement priorities. These should be 
set as local targets prescribed in the table above and may include specific and measurable 
goals when appropriate. However, not all improvement targets can be quantitative. If we 
asked schools to set clear improvement targets, then it would allow the local target as at 
present to be either quantitative or qualitative. 

Schools would only share their key improvement targets (or Local Targets) with the 
LA/Consortium. Local Authorities would still hold the statutory responsibility for signing off the 
improvement targets set by the schools. This process is usually quality assured by school 
improvement staff on behalf of the LAs. Local Targets would not be aggregated on an LA or 
regional basis.

In the interim, schools will also have to report against the prescribed statutory targets 
described in the table above until they are removed by legislation.

5. NATIONAL CATEGORISATION

As noted in the Estyn report, the consortium knows its schools increasingly well. Pre-
inspection reports for schools by the local authority, based on advice from the consortium, are 
broadly consistent with inspection outcomes. Inspectors have fewer concerns about these 
reports than in other regions in Wales.  Inspection outcomes show that schools have, overall, 
been placed in appropriate categories.                                                  

Primary Schools

The primary support category profile continues to improve year on year. The percentage of 
schools being awarded the highest judgements increased [A or B] in stage 2 of the process - 
an increase from 89.0% in 2016 to 92% in 2017. As a result, an increase was seen in the 
percentage of primary schools in the Green and Yellow categories - an increase from 84.8% 
in 2016 to 88.4% in 2017. A good increase was seen in the percentage of schools denoted 
green

Secondary Schools 

Page 133



14

The same positive trend of improvement cannot be seen in the secondary sector. The 
percentage of schools in a green support category has fallen slightly from 14.5% to 13%.  
However, the percentage of schools in a Green/Yellow support category has increased from 
58.2% in 2016, to 63.0% in 2017. The percentage being awarded the highest judgements [A 
or B] in stage 2 of the process, remained relatively stable.  

The national categorisation process will continue in its current form in 2018-19. The regional 
moderation will take place in early December 2018 with the national moderation in January 
2019.  The final school categorisation will be published on ‘My local school’ at the end of 
January 2019 (Step 2 – improvement capacity, Step 3 – support category).  The categorisation 
profile for the region is expected to further improve in 2018-19 and the process is currently 
ongoing.  

Page 134


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 THE JOINT COMMITTEE'S FINAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 AND RELEVANT AUDIT
	GwE ISA 260 201718 English
	Statement of Accounts GwE 2017-18 (post audit)

	6 GwE BUDGET 2017/18 - QUARTER 1 REVIEW
	Appendix 1

	7 2018-19 RISK REGISTER - QUARTER 1 REVIEW
	Risk register 2018-19 - September 2018

	8 2018-19 BUSINESS PLAN - QUARTER 1 MONITORING
	Business Plan 2017-20 Level 1 - Monitoring Q1

	9 INITIAL REPORT ON THE REGION'S PERFORMANCE
	Initial Report on the Region's Performance


